
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Fields

AGENDA December 02, 2015

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Fields

Minutes Recessed Meeting - November 11, 2015

Minutes Agenda Session - November 11, 2015

Minutes Regular Meeting - November 18, 2015

Report Trustee Monthly Report October 2015

Report Trustee Excess Fee Report October 2015

Report Quarterly Fee Office Reports

Report Juvenile Court Clerk's Reports August and September 2015

Res. No. 1215-1 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, the bonds and oaths
of notaries previously elected, and oaths of Deputy Sheriffs.

Res. No. 1215-2 A Resolution making an appropriation to Harrison Recreational Booster Club in the amount of
five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Nine.

Res. No. 1215-3 A Resolution making an appropriation to Signal Mountain Lions Charity in the amount of five
thousand dollars ($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Two.

Res. No. 1215-4 A Resolution making an appropriation to Scenic Cities Beautiful Commission in the amount of
one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Seven.

Res. No. 1215-5 A Resolution making an appropriation to Mowbray Volunteer Fire Department in the amount of
twelve thousand three hundred dollars ($12,300.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as
allotted to District One.

Res. No. 1215-6 A Resolution making an appropriation to Soddy Daisy Food Bank, Inc., in the amount of six
thousand dollars ($6,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
One.

Res. No. 1215-7 A Resolution making an appropriation to First Things First, Inc., in the amount of ten thousand
dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District Eight.

Res. No. 1215-8 A Resolution making an appropriation to Girls Incorporated of Chattanooga in the amount of ten
thousand dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Eight.

Res. No. 1215-9 A Resolution making an appropriation to The Next Door, Inc., in the amount of two thousand
dollars ($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District Eight.

Res. No. 1215-10 A Resolution making an appropriation to Partnership for Families, Children and Adults, Inc., in
the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as
allotted to District Four.

Res. No. 1215-11 A Resolution making an appropriation to the City of Chattanooga on behalf of Murray Hills Park
in the amount of two thousand five hundred thirty three dollars ($2,533.00) from General Fund
discretionary monies, as allotted to District Four.

Res. No. 1215-12 A Resolution making an appropriation to One Hundred Black Men of Chattanooga, Inc., in the
amount of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted
to District Four.



Res. No. 1215-13 A Resolution to accept the proposal of Dillard Elite Training by Design to provide onsite fitness
class instruction support  to the Hamilton County Wellness Center and to authorize the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1215-14 A Resolution accepting the bid of Helton Construction Company, Inc. for construction of the
Nolan Elementary School Addition amounting to $4,500,000.00 and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1215-15 A Resolution accepting the bids of Don Ledford Auto Park, LLC for two (2) regular cab pickup
trucks and CDJR of Columbia for one (1) super crew cab pickup truck and to authorize the
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1215-16 A Resolution ratifying the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for the period of October 1, 2015,
through October 31, 2015, and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1215-17 A Resolution accepting the unit price bids of CMS Communications, OM Office Supply, Inc. and
MXN Corporation beginning December 2, 2015, through December 1, 2016, for data
communications equipment for the Telecommunications Department and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1215-18 A Resolution accepting the bid of Clearline Networks, LLC for installation, termination, testing,
programming and certification of the communications cabling for Ganns Middle Valley
Elementary School amounting to $72,945.00 for the Telecommunications Department and to
authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

NOVEMBER 11, 2015 
 

1 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  November 11, 2015 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 11th day of November, 2015, a Recessed 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

 Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston. Total present – 9.  Total absent -0. 

 

 Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, and County Attorney Rheubin Taylor. 

 

 Commissioner Beck introduced Pastor Ernest L. Reid, Jr., Secondary Missionary 

Baptist Church. It was noted that Pastor Reid is the successor to the Rev. Paul 

McDaniel, a former County Commissioner, who recently retired as pastor of the church. 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

NOVEMBER 11, 2015 
 

2 
 

   Commissioner Beck also reported that Clarissa Faith Jackson, an employee of the 

Finance Department, unexpectedly passed away this past Sunday, November 8th. He 

asked that her family be kept in everyone’s thoughts and prayers. Pastor Reid gave the 

invocation and Commissioner Beck led in the pledge to the flag. 

 

Chairman Bankston announced that there was not any scheduled business for 

the Recessed Meeting and asked if anyone had any announcements. 

 

 Being no further business Chairman Bankston declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

 

      

     Respectfully submitted: 

 
      
     _______________________________ 
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

 

Approved: 

 
______ 
Date  Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 11, 2015 
 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  November 11, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 11th day of November, 2015, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston.  Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, and County Attorney Rheubin Taylor.  

 

In honor of Veterans Day, Chairman Bankston asked that all of the veterans 

present at today’s meeting stand. He thanked them for their service, and they were 

given a round of applause.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 11, 2015 
 
 

 2

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered 

as follows: 

 

 A Quarterly Investment Report for quarter ending September 2015 would be 
submitted for the record. 

 An Order of Designation to the Planning Commission would be submitted as a 
matter of record. 

 Unaudited Financial Reports from Circuit Court Clerk, Clerk and Master, County 
Clerk and Register for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 would be submitted 
as a matter of record. 

 Resolution No. 1115-16 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

 Resolution Nos. 1115-17A, 1115-17B, and 1115-18 were assigned to the Zoning 
Committee, chaired by Commissioner Haynes. 

 Resolution Nos. 1115-19, and 1115-25 through 1115-33 were assigned to the 
Finance Committee, chaired by Commissioner Boyd. 

 Resolution No. 1115-24 was assigned to the Roads Committee, chaired by 
Commissioner Haynes.  

 Resolution Nos. 1115-20 through 1115-23 and 1115-34 were heard by a 
Committee of the Whole. 

 

 

 Chairman Bankston stated that Resolution Nos. 1115-20 through 1115-23 and 

1115-34 would now be heard by the Committee of the Whole. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 11, 2015 
 
 

 3

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1115-20 

 

Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding this item, which appropriates $1,500.00 

from general fund discretionary monies to the City of Chattanooga as allotted to District 

4.  The funds will assist with renovations at the South Chattanooga Youth and Family 

Development Center. Commissioner Mackey added that this is an effort to help reduce 

violence.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1115-21 

 

Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding this item, which appropriates $2,500.00 

from general fund discretionary monies to the Tides Foundation as allotted to District 4. 

The NAACP has entered into an agreement with the Tides Foundation to create the 

NAACP Collective Action Fund in order to raise funds locally. It was noted that these 

funds will assist the NAACP in developing community initiatives and projects. 

Commissioner Mackey added that the goal is to keep kids focused on education and out 

of trouble.  

  

There were no questions from Commissioners. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 11, 2015 
 
 

 4

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1115-22 

  

 Commissioner Beck spoke regarding this item, which appropriates $2,500.00 

from general fund discretionary monies to the Tides Foundation as allotted to District 5. 

He noted that this item is a joint effort with Commissioner Mackey in order to assist the 

NAACP in developing community initiatives and projects.  

  

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1115-23 

  

Attorney Taylor spoke regarding this item, which amends and extends the current 

contract with the Tennessee Valley Railroad Museum (TVRM) for management of the 

rail yard and tracks at the Enterprise South Industrial Park. The amended contract will 

guarantee the County at least $140,000 in income per year for the TVRM’s exclusive 

operation of the rail system inside the park.  

 

In response to Commissioner Boyd’s question, Albert Kiser, Administrator of 

Finance, added that the rail system has generated between $76,000 and $126,000 in 

revenue for the County over the last few years. He added that the amended contract will 

guarantee the County $140,000 or 4% of their gross revenue, whichever is greater. Mr. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 11, 2015 
 
 

 5

Kiser clarified that the County is not currently paying the TVRM to manage the rail 

system; their revenue is generated from suppliers through user fees. It was noted that 

the museum is required to report their gross revenue quarterly, and the County can 

audit those records if necessary.  

 

In response to Commissioner Boyd’s question, Tim Andrews, Director of the 

Railroad Authority, noted that he did not expect an employment increase in that 

department. Mr. Kiser clarified that there is clause within the agreement that would allow 

either party to break the contract if that became necessary.  

 

Commissioner Haynes clarified for the record that the TVRM is a customer of his 

at Porter Warner Industries. He asked that Attorney Taylor advise him on whether he 

should recuse himself from the vote at next week’s meeting. Attorney Taylor indicated 

there was not a conflict. 

 

Mayor Coppinger noted that Attorney Allen McCallie was present at the meeting 

representing the TVRM.  

 

In response to Commissioner Graham’s comments, Attorney Taylor clarified that 

the County is guaranteed at least $140,000 per year. It was noted that the County will 

not be responsible for any maintenance costs at the rail yard.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 11, 2015 
 
 

 6

Mayor Coppinger clarified an earlier comment regarding the current revenue 

generated for the County by the TVRM. He noted that the correct numbers are between 

$76,000 and $126,000.  

 

LATE ITEM: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1115-34 

 

Chairman Bankston spoke regarding the late item, which appropriates $2,000.00 

from general fund discretionary monies to the Highway 58 Volunteer Fire Department as 

allotted to District 9. It was noted that the funds will assist them in purchasing supplies 

and equipment for their holiday program.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission.  

 

  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 11, 2015 
 
 

 7

 Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Roads and Zoning Committee, 

announced that the Roads and Zoning Committee would be meeting in the adjacent 

Conference Room immediately following today’s meeting. He thanked all the veterans 

for their service in honor of Veterans Day.  

 

 Commissioner Mackey spoke about Clarissa Jackson, an employee of the 

Finance Department, who unexpectedly passed away this past Sunday, November 8th. 

He asked that her family be kept in everyone’s thoughts and prayers.  It was noted 

Clarissa was the daughter of former Election Commission Administrator Carolyn 

Jackson. 

 

 Commissioner Graham echoed Commissioner Mackey’s sentiments about the 

passing of Ms. Jackson. He also announced that he would be attending the Veterans 

Day service at the Chattanooga National Cemetery today. He thanked all service 

members and their families, as well as all the first responders for their service.  

 

 Commissioner Boyd praised the East Ridge Pioneer’s football team for their 

current record-breaking 11-0 season. He added that he was part of the previous record-

holding team at East Ridge, when they had a 10-1 season in 1968. He thanked Head 

Coach Tracy Malone and his staff, and the faculty at East Ridge for their hard work and 

dedication.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 11, 2015 
 
 

 8

 In response to Commissioner Mackey’s question, Commissioner Boyd added 

that he was a running back for the East Ridge football team.  

 

 Commissioner Fairbanks spoke about Veterans Day and the program he 

attended at Soddy Daisy Middle School to honor veterans. He added that he 

appreciated the faculty at Soddy Daisy teaching children the importance of honoring 

veterans. He also announced in response to an earlier comment by Commissioner Boyd 

that he would not be officiating the football game at East Ridge High School this week.  

 

 Commissioner Smedley thanked veterans and their families. She invited 

everyone to Veterans Memorial Park in Collegedale at 3:00 pm where the memorial 

statue honoring the five service members that were killed in the July 16th shootings in 

will be unveiled. It was noted that Lieutenant Commander Tim White will be honored at 

next week’s meeting for his dedicated service. She also announced that school board 

members and their spouses, and the commission and their spouses will be attending a 

joint dinner event hosted by TechTown at 325 Market Street on Monday, November 16th 

at 6 p.m. 

 

 Commissioner Beck thanked the veterans that were present at today’s meeting, 

and sent his thoughts and prayers to the families of veterans whose lives have been 

lost. He recognized Charline Kilpatrick and Gloria McClendon with the United 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 11, 2015 
 
 

 9

Community Action Alliance who were present in the audience at today’s meeting. He 

asked that they stand, and they were given a round of applause.  

 

 Mayor Coppinger spoke about the passing of Ms. Jackson. He noted that is a 

time to reflect on the important things in life. He also added that is important to 

remember veterans and their families on Veterans Day and every day. He thanked the 

veterans that were present at today’s meeting. Mayor Coppinger spoke about attending 

the Veterans Day program at Soddy Daisy Middle School. He praised the behavior of 

the children and the job the faculty is doing at that school.  

 

 Chairman Bankston thanked all the veterans in honor of Veterans Day. He noted 

that as a veteran, he understands the sacrifices that they and their families make daily. 

He also congratulated Ooltewah High School on winning the first game of the play-offs. 

He wished them luck at their game Friday night.  

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

NOVEMBER 11, 2015 
 
 

 10

Being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting adjourned 

until Wednesday, November 18th at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      
      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 

           

__________   
Date      Clerk’s Initials 
 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

1 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  November 18, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 18th day of November, 2015, a Regular 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, 

Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Bankston. The 

Chairman announced that Commissioner Boyd would be absent. Total present – 8. 

Total absent – 1. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

2 

 

Commissioner Beck introduced Reverend Jonathan Schwartz, Brainerd 

Presbyterian Church, who gave the invocation. Reverend Schwartz spoke briefly about 

the importance of gratitude. Commissioner Beck led in the pledge to the flag.  

 

PRESENTATION – CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION – CHIEF PETTY OFFICER 

JOSEPH D. CAPOZZI AND LIEUTENANT COMMANDER TIM WHITE 

 

 Commissioner Smedley presented a Certificate of Appreciation to Chief Petty 

Officer Joseph D. Capozzi and Navy Lieutenant Commander Tim White. She noted that 

both men reside in District 7. Chief Petty Officer Capozzi was honored for his years of 

service in the United States Navy. He participated in Operation Iraqi Freedom and 

Operation Enduring Freedom, and earned multiple Navy and Marine Corps 

Commendation Medals and Achievement Medals.  

 

 Lieutenant Commander White is currently the Commanding Officer of the Naval 

Operational Support Center on Amnicola Highway, and was honored for his service and 

courage during the July 16, 2015 attack and murders at the Center. It was noted he was 

a key speaker at the Memorial Service at the McKenzie Arena, which honored the five 

service members who lost their lives during the horrific terrorist assault at the Naval 

Operational Support Center.  Lieutenant Commander White thanked members of the 

Commission for their support and for the honor. He spoke briefly about how appreciative 

he is to have the support of the community. He noted that less than 3% of the 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

3 

 

population has ever served in the military and less than 1% of the population is currently 

serving.  

 

 Commissioner Smedley thanked Chief Petty Officer Capozzi and Lieutenant 

Commander White for their service and sacrifices. She also thanked Legislative 

Administrator Patricia Moore for her assistance in preparing the certificates.  

 

 Commission members gave their thanks to Chief Petty Officer Capozzi and 

Lieutenant Commander White for their service and dedication. Commissioner Graham 

distributed a County pin to each of the men. 

 

 Commissioner Smedley also introduced Lieutenant Tay Brymer, Public Affairs 

Officer, and Mass Communications Specialist 1st Class America Henry who were 

present at today’s meeting. 

 

  Chief Petty Officer Capozzi and Lieutenant Commander White were personally 

greeted and congratulated by each Commissioner, Mayor Coppinger, and County 

Attorney Taylor. They shook hands with each of the officials. 

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

4 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Fields, that 

the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of October 28, 2015, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of October 28, 2015, and the Regular Meeting of November 4, 2015, be 

approved, treat same as read, made a matter of record and filed. The foregoing Motion 

was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission 

being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Commissioner Haynes was not present for the Roll Call. Commissioner Boyd 

was absent. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT 

 

 The quarterly investment report of Hamilton County government, for the quarter 

ending September 30, 2015 was submitted as a matter of record.  

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

5 

 

ORDER OF DESIGNATION 

 

 An order was submitted for the record designating Todd Leamon to sit as the 

County Mayor’s representative on the Planning Commission for the meeting November 

9, 2015. 

 

UNAUDITED FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 

 Unaudited financial reports for the following constitutional officers were submitted 

as a matter of record:  

 

 Circuit Court Clerk – year ending June 30, 2015 
 Clerk & Master – year ending June 30, 2015 
 County Clerk – year ending June 30, 2015 
 Register of Deeds – year ending June 30, 2015 

 

RESOLUTION  NO. 1115-16  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 

NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, THE OATHS OF JUDICIAL COMMISSIONERS, 

AND THE BOND OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF HAMILTON COUNTY 911 

EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1115-16.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

6 

 

Chairman Bankston asked if there were any questions. There were none.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. 

Commissioner Boyd was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes 

– 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-20  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE THOUSAND FIVE 

HUNDRED DOLLARS ($1,500.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR, TO ASSIST WITH RENOVATIONS 

AT SOUTH CHATTANOOGA YOUTH AND FAMILY DEVELOPMENT CENTER. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1115-20.  

 

Chairman Bankston asked if there were any questions. There were none.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

7 

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. 

Commissioner Boyd was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes 

– 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-21  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

THE TIDES FOUNDATION IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED 

DOLLARS ($2,500.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS 

ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1115-21.  

 

Chairman Bankston asked if there were any questions. There were none.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

8 

 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner Graham was not 

present for the Roll Call. Commissioner Boyd was absent. Total present – 7. Total 

absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-22  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

THE TIDES FOUNDATION IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED 

DOLLARS ($2,500.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS 

ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FIVE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Smedley, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1115-22.  

 

Chairman Bankston asked if there were any questions. There were none.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner Graham was not 

present for the Roll Call. Commissioner Boyd was absent. Total present – 7. Total 

absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

9 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-23  A RESOLUTION AMENDING AND EXTENDING THE 

CONTRACT WITH TENNESSEE VALLEY RAILROAD MUSEUM, INC. (“TVRM”) FOR 

MANAGEMENT OF THE RAIL YARD AND TRACKS AT THE ENTERPRISE SOUTH 

INDUSTRIAL PARK AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1115-23.  

 

Commissioner Haynes stated for the record that the Tennessee Valley Railroad 

Museum is a customer of his at Porter Warner Industries.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. 

Commissioner Boyd was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes 

– 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

10 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-34  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO  

HIGHWAY 58 VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1115-34.  

 

Chairman Bankston asked if there were any questions. There were none.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner Graham was not 

present for the Roll Call. Commissioner Boyd was absent. Total present – 7. Total 

absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

11 

 

LATE ITEM: RESOLUTION NO. 1115-35  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 

TRANSFERRING OF $34,000.00 IN DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS AS ALLOTTED 

TO COUNTY COMMISSION DISTRICT FIVE, AND THE TRANSFERRING OF A LIKE 

AMOUNT IN GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY FUNDS AS ALLOTTED TO 

COUNTY COMMISSION DISTRICT SEVEN TO COUNTY COMMISSION DISTRICT 

FIVE.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Smedley, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1115-35.  

 

Commissioner Smedley spoke about East Hamilton Middle/High School. She 

explained that the school was built in 2009 with the help of community fundraisers, and 

an athletic facility has been constructed with the help of discretionary funds from former 

Commissioner Larry Henry. She added that the school is currently in need of permanent 

public restrooms within the athletic facility. It was noted Commissioner Beck would be 

transferring $34,000.00 in discretionary bond funds for District 5 to assist in construction 

of the restrooms, and in exchange will receive $34,000.00 from District 7 general fund 

discretionary funds to allocate toward community projects. The Clerk’s office received a 

copy of the floor plan for the restroom facility.  

 

Commissioner Beck explained that the United Community Action Alliance 

supported the transfer of funds, and asked that the Commission support the transaction.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

12 

 

In response to Commissioner Smedley’s question, Al Kiser, Administrator of 

Finance, clarified that the State Comptroller will not allow the Commission to use 

general fund discretionary funds for projects related to the Department of Education.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner Graham was not 

present for the Roll Call.  Commissioner Boyd was absent. Total present – 7. Total 

absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Bankston asked that Resolution Nos. 1115-17A, 1115-17B, 1115-18, 

and 1115-24 be considered together at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-17A  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 

AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 8237 ROY LANE. 

 

NO ACTION WAS TAKEN ON RESOLUTION NO. 1115-17A. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

13 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-17B  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 

AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 8237 ROY LANE. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-18  A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS 

PERMIT FOR A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 8237 ROY LANE. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-24  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT FOR THE 

ACQUISITION OF RIGHTS-OF-WAY REQUIRED FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 

THE OOLTEWAH-GEORGETOWN ROAD, MOUNTAIN VIEW ROAD AND BLANCHE 

ROAD INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $23,900 OF WHICH 

80 PERCENT OF THE COST WILL BE REIMBURSED TO HAMILTON COUNTY BY 

THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND 20 PERCENT 

MATCH TO BE PAID BY HAMILTON COUNTY. 

 

 Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolution Nos. 1115-17A and 1115-17B, and stated that the Zoning 

Committee reviewed and recommended approval of Resolution No. 1115-17B.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1115-17B.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

14 

 

 In response to Commissioner Fields question, Commissioner Haynes clarified 

that Resolution No. 1115-17A was the applicant’s initial request to the Regional 

Planning Agency, and Resolution No. 1115-17B was the Regional Planning 

Commission’s response, which includes certain conditions.  

 

 Chairman Bankston asked if there was any further discussion. There was none.  

 

The foregoing Resolution No. 1115-17B was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. 

Commissioner Boyd was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes 

– 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1115-18. 

    

Chairman Bankston asked if there was any discussion. There was none.  

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

15 

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. 

Commissioner Boyd was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes 

– 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissiner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1115-24. 

 

Commissioner Haynes explained that the total cost of the intersection 

improvements would be $23,900. Eighty percent of the cost will be reimbursed by the 

Tennessee Department of Transportation, and twenty percent to be paid by Hamilton 

County totaling $4,780.00.   

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

16 

 

Commissioner Boyd was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes 

– 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Bankston asked that Resolution Nos. 1115-19 and 1115-25 through 

1115-33 be considered together at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-19  A RESOLUTION TO DECREASE THE EXPENDITURE 

BUDGET FOR THE JUVENILE COURT JUDGE BY $55,461.59 AND INCREASE THE 

EXPENDITURE BUDGET FOR THE SHERIFF BY $55,461.59. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-25  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ACCEPT A $460,000 LOCAL PARKS AND RECREATION FUND GRANT FROM 

THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION TO 

DEVELOP HORSE TRAILS AT ENTERPRISE SOUTH NATURE PARK AND TO SIGN 

ANY AND ALL GRANT-RELATED CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-26  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF PRATER 

FORD, INC. FOR MID-SIZE AND SMALL UTILITY VEHICLES FOR HAMILTON 

COUNTY AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

17 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-27  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF MIDDLE 

TENNESSEE TURF, INC. AND SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY FOR ONE (1) YEAR 

CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING DECEMBER 4, 2015, THROUGH DECEMBER 3, 

2016, FOR SOD FOR THE RECREATION DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-28  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF RAINES 

BROTHERS, INC. FOR THE COURTHOUSE SOUTH ENTRANCE MARBLE STEP 

LANDING RENOVATION AMOUNTING TO $58,890.00 FOR THE MAINTENANCE 

DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-29  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF Z-BAND, 

INC. FOR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING NOVEMBER 18, 2015, 

THROUGH NOVEMBER 17, 2016, FOR VIDEO DISTRIBUTION EQUIPMENT FOR 

THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

18 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-30  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF 

EPB FIBER OPTICS FOR INTERNET CONNECTIVITY FOR THE PERIOD 

DECEMBER 1, 2015, THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2018, WITH THE OPTION TO 

RENEW FOR AN ADDITIONAL THREE YEARS ON AN ANNUAL BASIS, AND TO 

AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 

IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-31  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH IN THE AMOUNT OF $416,700.00 TO PROVIDE SEXUALLY 

TRANSMITTED DISEASE AND HIV EDUCATION, PREVENTION AND CONTROL 

SERVICES IN HAMILTON COUNTY, FOR A TIME PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2016 

THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-32  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF YOUNG 

ELECTRIC COMPANY, INC. FOR AN EMERGENCY GENERATOR ADDITION FOR 

THE SEQUOYAH HEALTH CENTER AMOUNTING TO $91,617.00 AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

19 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1115-33  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO ACCEPT A GRANT SUPPLEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$255,012.00 FROM THE HEALTH RESOURCES AND SERVICES ADMINISTRATION 

(HRSA) AND TO INCREASE THE EXPENSE AND REVENUE BUDGETS BY 

$255,012.00. 

 

 Commissioner Fairbanks provided details regarding Resolution Nos. 1115-19 

and 1115-25 through 1115-33 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and 

recommended approval. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 

to adopt Resolution Nos. 1115-19 and 1115-25 through 1115-33.  

 

In response to Commissioner Fields question regarding Resolution No. 1115-31, 

Commissioner Fairbanks confirmed that the Tennessee Department of Health will 

provide federal cost reimbursement grant funds to the Health Department for sexually 

transmitted disease and HIV education, prevention and control services in Hamilton 

County.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

20 

 

Commissioner Graham spoke about Resolution No. 1115-25 regarding the horse 

trails at Enterprise South Nature Park. It was noted that Commissioner Graham was 

part of the Commission that initially approved that application for the grant (Resolution 

No. 414-15) on an 8-1 vote. He thanked Development Director Dan Saieed for working 

diligently to obtain the grant. He added that the horse trails would add value to Hamilton 

County as a whole.  

 

The foregoing Resolutions were adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. 

Commissioner Boyd was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes 

– 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

  

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission. 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

21 

 

Commissioner Mackey announced his support for a recent decision by the City 

Council to approve the construction of a seven-story apartment building on Cowart 

Street on the Southside of downtown Chattanooga. He added that he maintains an 

effort to support development and job creation in Hamilton County.  

 

Commissioner Graham also voiced his support for the City Council’s decision to 

approve the construction of the apartment building. He spoke about a community 

meeting he held with District 6 City Councilman Chris Anderson in which the Southside 

Neighborhood Association voted unanimously to raise the height of the building from 

five stories to seven. He noted the importance of supporting development in 

Chattanooga. Commissioner Graham thanked Commissioner Smedley for organizing 

the dinner at TechTown with School Board members.  

 

Commissioner Fairbanks also thanked Commissioner Smedley for bringing 

School Board members and County Commissioners together for the dinner at 

TechTown to discuss education. It was noted that Mayor Coppinger and Superintendent 

Rick Smith were also present at the meeting.  

 

Commissioner Smedley announced that today was Commissioner Fields 

birthday. She wished him a happy birthday. She also thanked members of the 

Commission for attending the dinner at TechTown. She encouraged everyone to find 

common ground in order to support education in Hamilton County.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

22 

 

Commissioner Beck also thanked Commissioner Smedley for organizing the 

dinner at TechTown.  

 

Mayor Coppinger spoke about the Bridge Retirement Plan (BRP) for the Sheriff’s 

Department. He explained that an actuarial firm is currently examining the plan, and he 

intends to meet with members of the Finance Department and the Sheriff’s Department 

to develop a proposal to bring before the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Bankston thanked Commissioner Smedley for organizing the 

dinner at TechTown. He also wished Commissioner Fields a happy birthday.  

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Adam Presley, residing at 9715 Smith Morgan Road in Soddy Daisy, TN, and 

Bob Mitchell, residing at 570 Sunny Side Road in Sweetwater, TN, addressed the 

Commission regarding the horse trails at Enterprise South Nature Park. They each 

thanked Commissioners on behalf of horse owners in Hamilton County for supporting 

the project and noted the positive impact that the trails will have on the community.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 

 

23 

 

 Commissioner Haynes added that Tennessee is the 6th largest state in horse 

population, and 2nd largest in mules and donkeys.  

 

There being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting in 

recess until Wednesday, November 25, 2015 at 9:30 AM. 

       

 

      Respectfully submitted: 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 

      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 

Approved: 

   

________  

Date  Clerk’s Initials 

 

       

































































No. 1215-1 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 
NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, AND OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS. 

   
 
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
“HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS,  said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE 
OF THE COUNTY CLERK” have given approved bonds for the office of 
Notary Public and have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS” have taken the oath of office. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
2.  That the persons listed on the “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE 

 COUNTY CLERK” relative to bonds given for the position of Notary Public are 
 hereby approved for such and the bonds are accepted and the oaths therefor are 
 approved as taken; and 



 

 

 
3. That the persons named on the listing labeled “OATHS OF DEPUTY 

SHERIFFS” are accepted and the oaths therefor are approved as taken; and  
 

 4. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 
is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 



























No. 1215-2 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO HARRISON RECREATIONAL BOOSTER 
CLUB IN THE AMOUNT OF FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($5,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 
DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Chester Bankston has expressed a desire to allocate Five Thousand 

Dollars ($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Harrison Recreational 
Booster Club to assist with supplies and equipment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
Harrison Recreational Booster Club to assist with supplies and equipment. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 









No. 1215-3 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO SIGNAL MOUNTAIN LIONS CHARITY 
IN THE AMOUNT OF FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($5,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 
DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT TWO. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Jim Fields has expressed a desire to allocate Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Signal Mountain Lions Charity 
to assist with the purchase of a PlusOptix Vision Screener to be used for children’s 
vision screening; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
Signal Mountain Lions Charity to assist with the purchase of a PlusOptix Vision Screener. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 



 

 

 
2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 

organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 1215-4 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO SCENIC CITIES BEAUTIFUL 
COMMISSION IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) FROM 
GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT SEVEN. 
 
WHEREAS, Scenic Cities Beautiful Commission is an agency of the City of Chattanooga; and 
 
WHEREAS, Scenic Cities Beautiful Commission works with other affiliates to prevent litter, 

encourage recycling and encourage community greening and beautification; and 
 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Sabrena Turner-Smedley has expressed a desire to allocate one thousand 

dollars ($1,000.00) to said Commission to assist with the beautification of Heritage Park; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That an appropriation to Scenic Cities Beautiful Commission in the amount of one thousand dollars 
($1,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be approved to assist with the beautification of 
Heritage Park.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS ESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 1215-5 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO MOWBRAY VOLUNTEER FIRE 
DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF TWELVE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($12,300.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO 
DISTRICT ONE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative Body to 

make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and civic 

organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on their nonprofit 
work; and  

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Randy Fairbanks desires to allocate $12,300.00 from General Fund 

discretionary monies to assist with the purchase of a Polaris Ranger All-Terrain Vehicle 
for Mowbray Volunteer Fire Department; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens of 

Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That Twelve Thousand Three Hundred Dollars ($12,300.00) from General Fund discretionary monies 
be appropriated to Mowbray Volunteer Fire Department to assist with the purchase of a Polaris Ranger 
All-Terrain Vehicle. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are appropriated shall 
file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a copy of an annual report of 
its business affairs and transactions and the proposed use of the County’s funds.  Such 
annual report shall be prepared and certified by the chief financial officer of such 
nonprofit organization in accordance with Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general welfare of 
the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County in 

providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in compliance with 
Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and all other laws which may 
apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations and so this 
is made subject to compliance with any and all of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 1215-6 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO SODDY DAISY FOOD BANK, INC., IN 
THE AMOUNT OF SIX THOUSAND DOLLARS ($6,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 
DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT ONE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on their 
nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Randy Fairbanks has expressed a desire to allocate Six Thousand Dollars 

($6,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Soddy Daisy Food Bank, Inc., to 
assist with operational expenses; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That Six Thousand Dollars ($6,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
Soddy Daisy Food Bank, Inc., to assist with operational expenses. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 















No. 1215-7 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO FIRST THINGS FIRST, INC., IN THE 
AMOUNT OF TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 
DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT EIGHT. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on their 
nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Tim Boyd has expressed a desire to allocate Ten Thousand Dollars 

($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to First Things First, Inc., to assist 
with the Dads Make a Difference Program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
First Things First, Inc., to assist with the Dads Make a Difference Program. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 1215-8 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO GIRLS INCORPORATED OF 
CHATTANOOGA IN THE AMOUNT OF TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) FROM 
GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT EIGHT. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on their 
nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Tim Boyd has expressed a desire to allocate Ten Thousand Dollars 

($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Girls Incorporated of 
Chattanooga to assist with their girls camp program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
Girls Incorporated of Chattanooga to assist with their girls camp program. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 1215-9 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO THE NEXT DOOR, INC., IN THE 
AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 
DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT EIGHT. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on their 
nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Tim Boyd has expressed a desire to allocate Two Thousand Dollars 

($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to The Next Door, Inc., to assist 
with their program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
The Next Door, Inc., to assist with their program. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 1215-10 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO PARTNERSHIP FOR FAMILIES, 
CHILDREN AND ADULTS, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($1,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO 
DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on their 
nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate One Thousand Dollars 

($1,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Partnership for Families, 
Children and Adults, Inc., to assist with their I AM Ready Center; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
Partnership for Families, Children and Adults, Inc., to assist with their I AM Ready Center. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 









No. 1215-11 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA ON 
BEHALF OF MURRAY HILLS PARK IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND FIVE 
HUNDRED THIRTY-THREE DOLLARS ($2,533.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 
MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Murray Hills Park is located in the city of Chattanooga; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is a need for park improvements at Murray Hills Park; and 
 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate two thousand five 

hundred thirty-three dollars ($2,533.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to 
assist with the needed improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, this County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That two thousand five hundred thirty-three dollars ($2,533.00) from General Fund discretionary 
monies be appropriated to the City of Chattanooga on behalf of Murray Hills Park to assist with needed 
park improvements. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 1215-12 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO ONE HUNDRED BLACK MEN OF 
CHATTANOOGA, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FROM 
GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate Two Thousand Dollars 

($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to One Hundred Black Men of 
Chattanooga, Inc., to assist with their scholarship fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
One Hundred Black Men of Chattanooga, Inc., to assist with their scholarship fund. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 









No. 1215-13 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL OF DILLARD ELITE TRAINING BY DESIGN 
TO PROVIDE ONSITE FITNESS CLASS INSTRUCTION SUPPORT TO THE HAMILTON 
COUNTY WELLNESS CENTER AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were received in response to public advertisement for a one (1) year contract, 

with the option to renew under the same terms and conditions for three (3) additional 
mutually agreeable one (1) year periods, to provide onsite fitness class instruction 
support to the Hamilton County Wellness Center; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the proposal from Dillard Elite Training by Design was considered to be the lowest and 

best proposal received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the proposal from Dillard Elite Training by Design to provide onsite fitness class instruction 
support to the Hamilton County Wellness Center is hereby accepted, said proposal being the lowest and 
best proposal received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contract necessary to implement 
this resolution.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 









No. 1215-14 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF HELTON CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, 
INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE NOLAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ADDITION  
AMOUNTING TO $4,500,000.00 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for construction of the 

Nolan Elementary School Addition; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Helton Construction Company, Inc. amounting to $4,500,000.00 

was considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Helton Construction Company, Inc. for construction of the Nolan Elementary 
School Addition amounting to $4,500,000.00 is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and 
best bid received, and the County Mayor is authorized to sign any contracts necessary to 
implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 















































No. 1215-15 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF DON LEDFORD AUTO PARK, LLC FOR TWO (2) 
REGULAR CAB PICKUP TRUCKS AND CDJR OF COLUMBIA FOR ONE (1) SUPER CREW 
CAB PICKUP TRUCK AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
   
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for two (2) regular cab pickup 

trucks for Emergency Services and one (1) super crew cab pickup truck for the 
Highway Department; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the bids from Don Ledford Auto Park amounting to $23,975.00 each for the regular 

cab pickup trucks and CDJR of Columbia amounting to $28,260.00 for the super crew 
cab pickup truck were considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Don Ledford Auto Park, LLC for two (2) regular cab pickup trucks and CDJR of 
Columbia for one (1) super crew cab pickup truck are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and 
best bids received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contacts necessary to implement this 
resolution.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 

























































































No. 1215-16 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE 
PERIOD OF OCTOBER 1, 2015, THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2015, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department was authorized to make purchases of petroleum products 

on the open market; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the following purchases were made between October 1, 2015, through October 31, 

2015.  
 
 October 7, 2015, $12,758.00 for 8,400 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.51881 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 October 12, 2015, $11,340.26 for 7,256 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.56288 per gallon 

from Parman Lubricants.  
 
 October 12, 2015, $11,453.02 for 7,927 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.444811 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 October 15, 2015, $1,173.62 for 699 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 1.6790 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
  
 October 16, 2015, $10,727.33 for 7,258 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.478001 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 October 21, 2015, $10,865.98 for 7,463 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.45598 per gallon 

from Parman Lubricants.  
  
 October 22, 2015, $11,220.06 for 8,431 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.33081 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
  
 October 22, 2015, $5,203.02 for 3,471 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 

1.498997 per gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  



 

 

 
  October 22, 2015, $11,181.47 for 8,402 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.330811 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 October 22, 2015, $11,212.08 for 8,425 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.330811 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 October 27, 2015, $544.76 for 150 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.19907 per gallon and 100 

gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.1490 per gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 October 28, 2015, $2,844.41 for 400 gallons of diesel fuel at $1.5500 per gallon and 

1,399 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at $1.5900 per gallon from Jat Oil and 
Supply, Inc. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That the above purchases be ratified in the best interest of Hamilton County, and the County Mayor is 
authorized to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 1215-17 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE UNIT PRICE BIDS OF CMS COMMUNICATIONS, OM 
OFFICE SUPPLY, INC. AND MXN CORPORATION BEGINNING DECEMBER 2, 2015, 
THROUGH DECEMBER 1, 2016, FOR DATA COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT FOR THE 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for contract unit pricing for 

data communications equipment to be installed in Hamilton County schools for the 
Telecommunications Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bids from CMS Communications, OM Office Supply, Inc. and MXN Corporation 

for data communications equipment were considered to be the lowest and best bids 
received and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of CMS Communications, OM Office Supply, Inc. and MXN Corporation for contract 
unit pricing, beginning December 2, 2015 through December 1, 2016, for data communications 
equipment for the Telecommunications Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and 
best bids received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 





































No. 1215-18 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 
December 2, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF CLEARLINE NETWORKS, LLC FOR 
INSTALLATION, TERMINATION, TESTING, PROGRAMMING AND CERTIFICATION OF THE 
COMMUNICATIONS CABLING FOR GANNS MIDDLE VALLEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
AMOUNTING TO $72,945.00 FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND TO 
AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for the communications cabling 

project at Ganns Middle Valley Elementary School for the Telecommunications 
Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from ClearLine Networks, LLC amounting to $72,945.00 was considered to be 

the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of ClearLine Networks, LLC for installation, termination, testing, programming and 
certification of the communications cabling for Ganns Middle Valley Elementary School for the 
Telecommunications Department amounting to $72,945.00 is hereby accepted, said bid being the 
lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to 
implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM  
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

December 2, 2015 

  
Date 

 




















































































	12-2-15 Public Agenda
	1215-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - November 11, 2015 _1962_11-11-15 Recessed
	1215-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - November 11, 2015 _1963_11-11-15 Agenda
	1215-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - November 18, 2015 _1964_11-18-15 Regular
	1215-_S_Report_Trustee Monthly Report October 2015_1947_October 2015 Monthly
	1215-_S_Report_Trustee Excess Fee Report October 2015_1948_October 2015 Excess Fee
	1215-_S_Albert Kiser_Report Quarterly Fee Office Reports_1949_0869_001
	1215-_S_Report_Juvenile Court Clerk's Reports August and September 2015_1959_Juvenile Court Clerk Reports August and September 2015
	1215-1_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1965_12-02-15
	1215-1_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1965_12-02-15A
	1215-2_R_Commissioner Bankston_Appropriation to Harrison Recreational Booster Club_1952_Comm Bankston Harrison Rec
	1215-2_S_Commissioner Bankston_Appropriation to Harrison Recreational Booster Club_1952_0906_001
	1215-3_R_Commissioner Fields_Appropriation for Signal Mountain Lions Charity_1957_Comm Fields Lions Charity
	1215-3_S_Commissioner Fields_Appropriation for Signal Mountain Lions Charity_1957_0916_001
	1215-4_R_Commissioner Turner-Smedley_Appropriation to Scenic Cities Beautiful Commission_1967_Comm Smedley Scenic Cities
	1215-5_R_Commissioner Fairbanks_Appropriation for Mowbray Volunteer Fire Department_1966_Comm Fairbanks Mowbray2
	1215-6_R_Commissioner Fairbanks_Appropriation for Soddy Daisy Food Bank_1968_Comm Fairbanks SD Food Bank
	1215-6_S_Commissioner Fairbanks_Appropriation for Soddy Daisy Food Bank_1968_0932_001
	1215-7_R_Commissioner Boyd_Appropriation for First Things First_1891_Comm Boyd First Things First
	1215-7_S_Commissioner Boyd_Appropriation for First Things First_1891_0746_001
	1215-8_R_Commissioner Boyd_Appropriation for Girls Incorporated_1892_Comm Boyd Girls Inc
	1215-8_S_Commissioner Boyd_Appropriation for Girls Incorporated_1892_0747_001
	1215-9_R_Commissioner Boyd_Appropriation for The Next Door Inc_1893_Comm Boyd Next Door
	1215-9_S_Commissioner Boyd_Appropriation for The Next Door Inc_1893_0748_001
	1215-10_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Partnership for Families Children and Adults Inc._1946_Comm Mackey FamiliesChildrenAdults
	1215-10_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Partnership for Families Children and Adults Inc._1946_0862_001
	1215-11_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation to the City of Chattanooga on behalf of Murray Hills Park_1950_Comm Mackey Murray Hills
	1215-12_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for One Hundred Black Men of Chattanooga Inc_1969_Comm Mackey 100 Black Men
	1215-12_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for One Hundred Black Men of Chattanooga Inc_1969_0937_001
	1215-13_R_Alecia Poe_Fitness Center Instruction Services_1958_RES. Fitness Center Instruction Services
	1215-13_S_Alecia Poe_Fitness Center Instruction Services_1958_Fitness Center Training Services
	1215-14_R_Todd Leamon_Nolan Elementary School Addition_1970_RES. NOLAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ADDITION
	1215-14_S_Todd Leamon_Nolan Elementary School Addition_1970_Nolan Elementary School Addition
	1215-15_R_Albert Kiser_Pickup Trucks_1954_RES. PICKUP TRUCKS FOR HWY AND EMERGENCY SERVICES
	1215-15_S_Albert Kiser_Pickup Trucks_1954_Pickup Trucks
	1215-16_R_Albert Kiser_Fuel October 2015_1961_Fuel Resolution October 2015
	1215-16_S_Albert Kiser_Fuel October 2015_1961_October 2015 docs
	1215-17_R_Bill McGriff_Data Communications Equipment Contract_1955_RES. DATA COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT
	1215-17_S_Bill McGriff_Data Communications Equipment Contract_1955_Data Communications Equipment
	1215-18_R_Bill McGriff_Communications Cabling for Ganns Middle Valley Elementary School_1960_RES. COMMUNICATIONS CABLING AT GANNS MIDDLE VALLEY
	1215-18_S_Bill McGriff_Communications Cabling for Ganns Middle Valley Elementary School_1960_Communications Cabling at Ganns Middle Valley Elementary School

